A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, January 11,2011
At
5:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Stephanie Tvardek,
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Posting Date: 1-7-11

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940

10:00am



Light and Power Board 2 January 11, 2011
Regular Meeting

AGENDA

Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together
to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board, staff or the public
may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and placed elsewhere on the agenda
for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically respected. If an item is not removed from the
consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single Board action

adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 28, 2010.

3. Old Business

a. Consideration of trial and settlement strategy in Brown Bark I, L.P. v Traverse City Light
and Power (possible closed session). (Doren)

b. Update re: pension legacy costs. (Rice/Commissioner Gillman)

4. New Business

a. Presentation of the 2009-2010 Financial Audit. (Arends)
b. Economic Development Corporation update. (Tino Breithaupt)

5. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.

b. From Staff.

1. Verbal update re: the 2011 Regional Energy Expo. (Wheaton)
2. Verbal update re: Kalkaska Combustion Turbine. (Rollenhagen)
3. Verbal update re: Joint Study Session with the City Commission scheduled for
Tuesday, January 18, 2011. (Rice)
c. From Board.

6. Public Comment

/st




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, December 28, 2010

Board Members -
Present: Mike Coco, Linda Johnson, John Snodgrass, Ralph Soffredine, John
Taylor, John Welch
Absent: Jim Carruthers
Ex Officio Member -
Absent: R. Ben Bifoss
Others: Ed Rice, Tim Arends, Stephanie Tvardek, Jim Cooper, Jessica Wheaton,

Nick Abraitis, Larry LaCross, Scott Menhart, Glen Dine

The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by Chairman Coco.

Chairman Coco amended the agenda to add an introduction of a new Traverse City Light &
Power staff member prior to the Consent Calendar.

Ed Rice introduced new staff member Scott Menhart, Network Administrator.

Item 2 on the Agenda being Consent Calendar

Moved by Johnson, seconded by Soffredine, that the following actions, as recommended on the
Consent Calendar portion of the Agenda, be approved:

a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 14, 2010 be approved.
CARRIED unanimously. (Carruthers absent)

Item 3 on the Agenda being Old Business

3(a).
Consideration of approving Professional Services Agreement with Greenlight Marketing.

The following individuals addressed the Board:

-Tom Karas, 8801 Section Line Road, Michigan Energy Alternatives Program, Non-
Ratepayer

Moved by Welch, seconded by Taylor, that the Light and Power Board authorize the Executive
Director to execute an Agreement for Professional Services with Greenlight Marketing at the
hourly rates as indicated in the Agreement.

CARRIED unanimously.

Item 4 on the Agenda being New Business . \’“‘ ?




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 December 28, 2010
4(a).

Consideration of Asset Inventory and Management Software License Agreements.

Moved by Soffredine, seconded by Welch, that the Board authorizes the Chairman and Secretary
to execute a three year agreement with ESRI in the amount of $75,000, for an enterprise license,

subject to approval as to substance by the Executive Director, and approval as to form by
General Counsel.

CARRIED unanimously.

4(b).

Consideration of a Collection Agency Agreement.

Moved by Welch, seconded by Soffredine, that the Board authorize the Chairman and Secretary
to execute an agreement with Cadillac Area Receivables Management for collection agency

services, subject to approval as to substance by the Executive Director and as to form by the
City’s Attorney.

CARRIED unanimously.

Item 5 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications

A. From Legal Counsel.
B. From Staff.

1. Jessica Wheaton spoke re: East Side Transmission Project webpage.
2. Ed Rice and Nick Abraitis spoke re: Peak Load Management.

C. From Board.

1. John Welch asked for clarification re: the Fiber Fund Financials.

Item 6 on the Agenda being Public Comment

No one from the public commented.

There being no objection, Chairman Coco declared the meeting adjourned at 6:48 p.m.

Edward E. Rice, Secretary
/st LIGHT AND POWER BOARD



SONDE

E
RACINEGDOREN:..

A T T O R N E Y §

RONALD W. SONDEE
JOHN P. RACINE. JR
W PETER DOREN
ALAN ] COUTURE
JOHN A, MACNEAL
MAURICE A. BORDEN
MICHAEL B NEWMAN

RAY .J. MACNER.
OF COUNSEL

Michael Coco, Chairman
325 Wellington Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

John F. Welch
534 Washington Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

Ralph Sotftredine, City Commissioner

220 Huron Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

John Taylor
617 Washington Street
Tiaverse City, M1 49686

Dear Board Membets:

Re: Brown Bark I v ICL&P

310 WEST FRONT STREET CAYLORD OFFICE
SUITE 300
TRAVERSE CITY MICHIGAN 496844

440 W MAIN STREET. SUITE A
GAYLORD, MICHIGAN 49735

TEL (231) 947-0400 TEL (989) 732-1152

FAX (231) 947 .'07"8 FAX (980) 732-4843
www.sondeeracine.com

For the Board Meeting of
January 11, 2011

John Snodgrass
210 E. Ninth Street
Traverse City, MI 49684

Ben Bifoss, City Manager
400 Boardman Avenue
Traverse City, MI 49684

Jim Carruthers, City Commissioner
218 West Eleventh Street
Traverse City, MI 49684

Linda Johnson, Vice Chairperson
6621 Mission Ridge
Traverse City, MI 49686

I would like to meet with you in closed session to discuss trial and settlement strategy in the
above case. This requires a two-thirds majority roll call vote. Isuggest the following motion to go

into closed session:

MOVEDBY

,SECONDED BY , 10

GO INTO CLOSED SESSION TO DISCUSS TRIAL AND SETTLEMENT
STRATEGY IN BROWN BARK I, LP. v TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND
POWER DEPARTMENT, UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS FOR THE
SIXTH CIRCUIT, CASE NO. CA 10-2644, AT THE CONCLUSION OF PUBLIC

COMMENT.

1




TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board f? E
From: Ed Rice, Executive Director

Date: January 7, 2011

Subject: Presentation by City Commissioner Gillman

On January 6™ the Board's Human Resource Committee met with the Mayor and
Commissioner Gillman to discuss an active employee grievance regarding pension
benefit enhancements for its employee bargaining unit.

The Committee expressed interest in learning more about employer legacy costs
relating to public employee pensions and Commissioner Gillman agreed to make a
presentation to the Board regarding this issue from the vast research he has done as a

member of COFAC and City Commissioner. Below is an outline from Commissioner
Gillman on the topics he will cover in his presentation:

¢ Defined benefit vs. defined contributions, differences explained,

¢ National trends;

e MERS treatment of system changes;

o Current funding status in Traverse City, MERS and Public Act 312;
e Current posture of City Commission on employee time "purchases",
e Governmental handling of pension shortfalls, in and out of Michigan;

o Studies and media sources for deeper exploration of the issue.

Michael J. Gillman, Traverse City Commissioner




FOR HISTORICAL REFERENCE ONLY

(to view the full MERS report referenced in this memo see the TCL&P website for packet
information from the 11-10-09 Regular Board Meeting)

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Controller

Date: November 6, 2009

Subject: Employee Purchase of Pension Service Credit

At its last meeting the Board tabled consideration of two employee requests to purchase
generic service credit with our pension provider, Municipal Employees Retirement
System (MERS), pending additional information from staff or MERS regarding actuarial
assumptions and the risk of loss to the employer.

Article Il, section 7 of the MERS Plan Document allows for employees to purchase
generic service credit as allowed by the employer’s policy and upon resolution adopted
by the governing body of the municipality (City Commission). The policy must allow for
uniform applicability of the provisions of the Plan, related to this section, for all members
covered under the Plan.

Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company (GRS) conducts an annual actuarial valuation report
for the City (which includes Light & Power) that determines the annual contribution
required by the City based on benefits offered to its different employee groups. GRS
also provides MERS with a program that includes the same actuarial assumptions as
those used in the annual report, to determine the cost in purchasing generic service
credits.

Attached is the Executive Summary of the December 31, 2008 report that describes the
systems experience in the past year, along with any changes in actuarial assumptions.
Also attached is information on the assumptions used by the actuary in determining the
cost of benefits.

MERS makes it clear to the employer and employee that they are not responsible for
any losses which may result if actual experience differs from actuarial assumptions, and
the City is required to sign a statement indicating that it is accountable for these
differences.




FOR HISTORICAL REFERENCE ONLY

€80 11O & POWER

To: Light and Power Board

From: Ed Rice, Executive Director

Date: May 5, 2010

Subject: Municipal Employees Retirement System

As an introduction, Light & Power bargaining unit and administrative employees are
currently enrolled in the Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS) benefit
programs under the umbrella of the City of Traverse City. Any changes to the benefit
plans require City Commission approval as the City Commission is considered the
“governing body” of the Plan.

Since the Light & Power Board had Charter authority to approve wage and benefit
packages for the utility employees we asked MERS if Light & Power could separate
from the City’s Plan and create its own plan. After research by MERS, they concluded
that Light & Power qualifies as a municipality for MERS Plan purposes.

To create a new plan MERS requires the governing body’s approval of several
resolutions; we have incorporated all of them into one resolution (attached) for your
consideration. This action would allow the Light & Power Board to have “governing
body” authority on all future Light & Power employee issues that pertain to the MERS
Plan.

Staff is recommending approval of this action and considers this a governance issue as
there will be no change in employee benefits. If the Board agrees with staff’s
recommendation to create a new MERS Defined Benefit Program, subject to City
Commission approval to close the current L&P divisions within the City’s Plan and
transfer the market values of those divisions into the new Plan, the following motion
would be appropriate:

(No motion was made at the meeting)



TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Controller

Date: January 7, 2011

Subject: Municipal Employees Retirement System Information

At the May 11, 2010 Board meeting staff recommended the Board approve the
creation of a new MERS Plan that would separate Light & Power employee groups from
City employee groups for this pension benefit. The reason for this recommendation is
that there is an active grievance that Light & Power is unable to remedy because the
City is considered the governing body as it relates to MERS benefit changes; however,
the Light & Power Board is the governing body as it relates to the Light & Power
bargaining unit agreement. Creating a new MERS Plan under Light & Power would
allow the Board to be the governing body for any/all benefit changes to the Plan.

The Board tabled the issue and requested additional information from staff
concerning implications related to approval of this action item. Specifically: a) the
current funding percentage, b) how the action could impact our liabilities, c) what the
cost would be to create and administer this new plan, d) if any special valuations would
be required to create the new plan and at what cost, e) what the actuarial assumptions
are and the ongoing costs to L&P of doing additional valuations, and f) what
responsibilities would this action bring back to the Board that it doesn’t already have.

a) Current Funding Percentages: Attachment “A” is an excerpt from the latest
actuarial evaluation from MERS dated 12/31/2009. Following is a comparative
analysis by year of the funding level changes:

- 7 - : Markef\/a‘IUe of ~ Unfunded %

- ~Yearf __ Division . Assets | _Liabilities Funded
2009 | (10) LP Admin $ 3,802,995 $1,279,516 77.9%
2009 | (12) LP Non Admin $12,408,631 $5,281,905 71.8%
2010 | (10) LP Admin $ 3,644,944 $1,034,891 77.9%
2010 | (12) LP Non Admin $12,357,429 $4,857,393 71.8%

b) Actions Impact on Liabilities: | contacted Karima Porter, a Retirement
Services member of MERS, and she re-confirmed that creation of this new
municipal MERS plan will have NO impact on either the L&P Market Value, or the
Unfunded Liabilities.




c) Costto Create and Administer New Plan: Creating a new MERS Plan will
incur no new costs to L&P and will involve no additional administrative duties
beyond what is currently being done. City Human Resources will continue to
report monthly payroll figures to MERS and the Treasurer’s Office will continue to
make L&P’s monthly contributions electronically.

d) Cost of New Actuary Evaluations & Reports: MERS has assured me that
approval of creating a new Plan would not require a special actuarial evaluation
since both divisions for L&P are currently valued separate from other city labor
groups. MERS will take the latest actuary valuations for Division 10 and Division
12 and move them into the new Plan. At every calendar year-end there will be an
evaluation prepared for the new Plan. The only change that we would notice is
that Traverse City would receive two separate Evaluation Reports each year with
L&P and the City separated.

e) Additional Valuations Actuarial Cost & Actuarial Assumptions: As stated
previously there will no additional valuations required and no additional costs to
L&P if the utility creates its own MERS Plan. Atissue is the City Commission’s
position that it will not entertain any new requests by employees to purchase (at
the employee’s cost) generic service credit due to the uncertainty of future costs
to the employer based on actuarial assumption that use an 8% rate of return on
system assets. The City Manager sent a communication to the City Commission
in June 2009 that provided a wealth of information on the MERS Actuarial Report
and provides information from that report on benefit levels, contributions by
division, actuarial funding method, and other information. | have attached the
complete handout as Attachment “B”. | will provide the 77 page Valuation Report
in its entirety to anyone that would like one.

f) What Would Approval of a New MERS Plan Have on the Board?: As
mentioned in the memo from Ed Rice at your May 11 meeting, this is merely a
governance issue. Currently, the Board approves/authorizes benefits for the L&P
employee groups, however, any changes regarding the MERS benefit requires
approval of the City Commission because the original Plan was created with the
City Commission as the “governing body”. Should the L&P Board wish to change,
to either enhance or lessen, employee benefits, it would not be able to do so
without City Commission approval. There would be no change to anything the
Board is currently required to do except that your motions would not have to be
subject to City Commission approval.

In summary, the recommended action that the Board approve creating a new
MERS Plan specific to L&P, which would require City Commission approval, will not
cost any additional money, change any values or assumptions for any City employee
group, or change any duties in administering the Plan(s). This is simply a governance
issue that is up to the Light & Power Board and City Commission in determining what is
best for both the City and Light & Power.

10




City of Traverse City (2801)

Table 13

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities and Valuation Assets as of December 31, 2009

rpc_id: 38938

Unfunded
Actuarial (Overfunded)
Accrued Valuation Percent Accrued
Division Liabilities Assets Funded Liabilities
01 - AdmnStf
Reserve for Employer Contributions
and Benefit Payments
Active Members $ 5,981,649 $ 1,893,612 31.7% | $4,088,037
Vested Former Members 456,705 456,705 100.0 0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 71.771.956 7.771.956 100.0 0
Total $ 14,210,310 $ 10,122,273 71.2% | $ 4,088,037
Reserve for Employee Contributions
Active Members $ 320,467 $ 320,467
Vested Former Members 10,375 10,375
Pending Refunds 0 (1)
Total $ 330,842 $ 330,842 100.0% $0
Division Total $ 14,541,152 $ 10,453,115 71.9%| $ 4,088,037
10 -LP Admn
Reserve for Employer Contributions
and Benefit Payments
Active Members $1,719,193 $ 439,677 25.6%| $1,279,516
Vested Former Members 229,962 229,962 100.0 0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 3.133.356 3.133.356 100.0 1]
Total $ 5,082,511 $ 3,802,995 74.8% ] $1,279,516
Reserve for Employee Contributions
Active Members $0 $0
Vested Former Members 0 0
Pending Refunds 0 0
Total $0 $0 0.0% $0
Division Total $ 5,082,511 $ 3,802,995 74.8%| $1,279,516
11 - Gnl GME
Reserve for Employer Contributions
and Benefit Payments
Active Members $6,492,179 $ 3,903,919 60.1% | $2,588,260
Vested Former Members 831,962 831,962 100.0 0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 9.423.209 9,423,209 100.0 0
Total $ 16,747,350 $ 14,159,090 84.5% | $2,588,260
Reserve for Employee Contributions
Active Members $ 124,749 $ 124,749
Vested Former Members 27,627 27,627
Pending Refunds 0 0
Total $ 152,376 $ 152,376 100.0% $0
Division Total $ 16,899,726 $ 14,311,466 84.7%| $2,588,260
Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company -17 of 96 -

11




City of Traverse City (2801)

Table 13 (continued)

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities and Valuation Assets as of December 31, 2009

rpe_id: 38938

Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company

Unfunded
Actuarial (Overfunded)
Accrued Valuation Percent Accrued
Division Liabilities Assets Funded Liabilities
12 - Non Adm
Reserve for Employer Contributions
and Benefit Payments
Active Members $ 7,656,773 $2,374,868 31.0% | $5,281,905
Vested Former Members 53,404 53,404 100.0 0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 9.701.820 9.701.820 100.0 0
Total $17,411,997 $ 12,130,092 69.7% 1 $5,281,905
Reserve for Employee Contributions
Active Members $ 271,998 $271,998
Vested Former Members 6,541 6,541
Pending Refunds 0 0
Total $ 278,539 $ 278,539 100.0% $0
Division Total $ 17,690,536 $ 12,408,631 70.1%| $ 5,281,905
13 - ACT hired after 7/1/09
Reserve for Employer Contributions
and Benefit Payments
Active Members $3,291 $ 3,641 110.6% $ (350)
Vested Former Members 0 0 0.0 0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 0 0 0.0 0
Total $ 3,291 $ 3,641 110.6% $ (350)
Reserve for Employee Contributions
Active Members $0 $0
Vested Former Members 0 0
Pending Refunds 0 0
Total $0 $0 0.0% $0
Division Total $3,291 $ 3,641 110.6% $ (350)
14 - General GME hired af 7/1/09
Reserve for Employer Contributions
and Benefit Payments
Active Members $ (727) $ 413 0.0% $ (1,140)
Vested Former Members 0 0 0.0 0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 0 0 0.0 0
Total $(727) $413 0.0% $ (1,140)
Reserve for Employee Contributions
Active Members $0 $o0
Vested Former Members 0 0
Pending Refunds 0 0
Total $0 $0 0.0% $0
Division Total $ (727) $413 0.0% $ (1,140)
- 18 of 96 -

12




City of Traverse City (2801)

Table 13 (continued)

Actuarial Accrued Liabilities and Valuation Assets as of December 31, 2009

Unfunded
Actuarial (Overfunded)
Accrued Valuation Percent Accrued
Division Liabilities Assets Funded Liabilities
Municipality Totals
Reserve for Employer Contributions
and Benefit Payments
Active Members $ 21,852,358 $ 8,616,130 39.4% $13,236,228
Vested Former Members 1,572,033 1,572,033 100.0 0
Retirees and Beneficiaries 30,030,341 30,030,341 100.0 0
Total $ 53,454,732 $ 40,218,504 75.2%] $13,236,228
Reserve for Employee Contributions
Active Members $ 717,214 $ 717,214
Vested Former Members 44,543 44,543
Pending Refunds 0 : 0
Total $ 761,757 $ 761,757 100.0% $0
Municipality Total $ 54,216,489 $ 40,980,261 75.6%| $13,236,228
Please see the Comments on the Investment Markets on page 3.
- 19 of 96 -

rpe_id: 38938

Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company

13




Memorandum The City of Traverse City

TO: ED RICE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, LIGHT & POWER
COPY: MAYOR & CITY COMMISSIONERS

TIM ARENDS, CONTROLLER, LIGHT&POWER
FROM: R. BEN BIFOSS, CITY MANAGER /
SUBIJ: MERS
DATE: JUNE 4, 2010

The Traverse City Light & Power Board has requested additional information regarding the City
Commission’s recent denials of Light & Power (L&P) employees’ purchase of additional service
credit. I provide this as additional background on that subject.

An employee’s purchase of additional years of service credit is supposed to be at 100% of the
actuarial cost of the time purchased. There is supposed to be no actuarial cost to the employer.
However, the actuarial cost of the years of service is determined using the most recent actuarial
valuation. The most recent actuarial valuation includes a statement that the actuarial value of
system assets is 139% of the actual market value of system assets. Said a different way, the
actuarial valuation assumes one dollar of assets when only 72 cents is actually present. The cost
estimate for the employee purchase of service credit uses the one dollar figure rather than the 72
cents thereby substantially understating the true cost to the employee.

The actuary’s use of the actuarial valuation is completely normal and reasonable. The actual
market value of system assets varies greatly over time due to market conditions, and the actuary
uses a “smoothing” period to reduce the variability of market conditions.

Based on the above, at this point in time, when an employee purchases service credits, it imposes

a significant additional cost to the employer. The City Commission has not been willing to
accept that cost on either the City’s or L&P’s behalf.

Office of the City Manager, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, MI 49684 (231) 922-4440

14



Memorandum The City of Traverse City

TO: MAYOR & CITY COMMISSION

FROM: R. BEN BIFOSS, CITY MANAGER

COPY: BILL TWIETMEYER, TREASURER/FINANCE DIRECTOR
DATE: JUNE 24, 2009

SUBJECT: MERS ACTUARIAL REPORT

Attached please find a summary of the most recent actuarial report from MERS in addition to the
section that includes the assumptions used in the report.

Within MERS, the four divisions are as follows:
01 Consists of all Administrative, Confidential, & Technical employees.

10 Consists of all Light & Power Administrative employees.

11 Consists of all GME bargaining unit employees, both DPS and
Clerical/Technical.

12 Consists of all Light & Power bargaining unif employees.

In short, for ACT employees, the percent of payroll cost increases from 16.62% to 17.9% and the
GME cost increases from 13.82% to 16.27%. There are several comments regarding the value of
the assets versus market conditions worthy of your attention.

This report reinforces the need to address the pension issues in the ongoing labor negotiations.
The change for the ACT group has already been made but is not reflected in the attached.

The entire report is available upon request. It was not copied here as it is 77 pages. Please let
either the City Treasurer or me know if you have any questions regarding this.




Capw C.c. |
City of Traverse City (2801)

Executive Summary

Required Employer Contributions

The computéd minimum required employer contifbutions to: the retirement system for the fiscal
years beginning July 1, 2010 (2008 Valuation) and July 1, 2009 (2007 Valuation) are as follows:

Minimum Required Monthly Employer Contributions @
Percentage of Payroll $ Based on Valuation Payroll
Division 2008 Valuation | 2007 Valuation § 2008 Valuation | 2007 Valuation

01 - AdmnStf T 17.90% T 16.60% $36,960 $31,086
10 -LP Admn 20.48% 17.72% 10,875 12,811
11 -Gnl GME . 16.27% 13.82% 41,049 33,847
12 -Non Adm . 26.12% 21.41% 40,944 35,026
Total Municipality . _ $129,828 $113,670

@  The above employer contribution requirements are in addition to the member contributions, if any, shown in Tdble 1.
Please see the Comments.on the Investment Markets on page 3.

For addltlonal detalls see Table 15,

COItis important to note that the conmbutlon rates shown above are not expected io remain at
present levels indefinitely. If future experience were to match the valuation assumptions exactly,
the computed employer rates for divisions that are open to new hires would trend over time
toward the long-term cost of system benefits, known as the Normal Cost (see Table 15). For
underfunded divisions that are closed to new hires and are not linked to an open division, the
computed employer dollar contribution would increase 4%-8% anmually, until full fanding is
reached. The required employer contribution for such a closed division. typically reaches its
highest level about 11-12 years after the division becomes closed. Prospective benefit changes as
well as Retirement System gains and losses will also affect future contribution rates.

Contribution rates will change from one year to the next as'a result of changes in benefit
provisions, changes in the actuarial assumptions, and expenence of the plan (mvestment
experience and demographic experience).

~ The 2008 valuation reflects changes in actuarial assumptions and/or methods (please refer to pége
48). The effects of the changes are stiown in the note below Table 16 for each division. For benefit

provision changes see Table 1.

e_id: 32104 * Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company ~20f77-




City of Traverse City (2801)

- Executive Summary (continued)

2008 System Experience

Based on the smoothed Actuarial Value of Assets, the recognized r_a’cé of investment return for
- MERS overall was 4.7% (less than the 8% actuarial assumption). On average this will result in
increases in computed employer contributions. -

Demographic experience varied by division. This reflects what ac‘tualfy happened to participants
(active members, retirees, and vested former members) compa;red to what was projected by the

actuarial assumptions.

2008 Funded Position

The ratio of the Valuation Assets to the Actuarial Accrued Liability for City of Traverse City in
aggregate is 77%; last year's ratio was 80%. :

Comme‘nts on the Investment Markets

The dramatic price declines across the world financial markets in 2008 led to volatility unlike any

Lod experienced in decades. 2009 has continued to be only somewhat less volatile. This is a ctisis of

the global economy focused on the financial sector. The U.S. government and business leaders
are doing all they can to address the issues. Even so, it is going to be difficult in the short term to

meet the mvestment assumption of 8% annual return.

The actuarial value of assets (ﬁmdino value), used to determine both your funded status and your
required employer contribution, is based on a 10-year smoothed value of assets. Only a portion
(one-tenth) of the 2008 investment market losses were recognized in this actuarial valuation
report. This reduces the volatility of the valuation results, which affects your required employer

contribution and actuarial funded percéntage.

As of December 31, 2008 the ac:marial value of assets is 139% of market value. This means that
meeting the actuarial assumption in the next few years will require average annual market returns
that substantially exceed the 8% investment return assumption.

If the December 31, 2008 valudtion results were based on market value on that date instead of _

10-year smoothed funding value: i) the funded percent of your entire municipality would be 56%
(instead of 77%); and ii) your total employer contribution requirement for the fiscal year starting
July 1, 2010 would be $2,203,332 (instead of $1,557,936)'. If the investment markets do not turn

<~ % around, employer contribution requirements can be expected to rise. MERS is doing everything it

can to make sure that if this proves to be the case, the increases are incremental as opposed to

rpe_id: 32104 Gaburiel Roeder Smith & Company -30f77-

17




City of Traverse City (2801)

Executive Summary (continued)

steep..

Remember that only one-tenth of the 2008 market losses are reflectod in this actuarial valuation
report. As was true for past market downturns, MERS expects the markets to rebound over time.
By the time the 2008 market losses would be fully recognized (over the following 9 years), future
market gains are expected to partly or fully offset 2008 market losses. This smoothing method is
a powerful tool for reducing the volatility of your required employer contributions. However, if
the financial markets do not rebound, the result would be gradual increases in your employer
contribution requirement over the next 9 years (as described above). A

Possible Future Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial assumptions are reviewed every five years, and sometimes more often. The next review
of MERS actuarial assurnptichs will begin in July 2009, and will cover the 2004-2008 valuation
years. All areas of activity will be studied, and it is very likely that there will be new actuarial
assumptions reflected in the December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010 valuations. As done in
February 2009, MERS expects to provide employers with updates conceining pendmg new

'b *} actuarial assumptions and the ongoing effects of the financial markets.

1-) S

Comment on Actuarial Calculations - The projections of yeur fufure employer contributions in this report ave based on
the current actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2008 actuarial valuation. As always, your required

employer coniribution rate changes every year, in response to demographic changes, financial experience, benefit

provision changes, ete, within your specific plan. The results of future actuarial valeations will differ from the
projections, sometimes materially.

1pe_id: 32104 Gabtiel Roeder Smith & Company -4 0f 77 -

| 8




" Benefit Provisions Evaluated and/or Considered

City of Traverse City (2801)

Table 1

rpe_id: 32104

Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company

Pivision 2008 Valuation 2007 Valuation
01 - AdonStf B-3 - 80% Max B-3 - 80% Max
Normal Ret Age: 60 . Normal Ret Age: 60
V-6 V-6 '
F55(25) F55(25)
FAC-5 » FAC-5 -
E (2.0%) (01/01/1989) B (2.0%) (01/01/1989)
E-1(2.5%) (01/01/1990) E-1 (2.5%) (01/01/1990)
0.00% Member Contrib. 0.00% Member Contrib.
1 10-LP Admn B-3 - 80% Max | B-3 - 80% Max
Normal Ret Age: 60 Normal Ret Age: 60
V-10 ' V-10
F55(25) 1 F55025)-
FAC-5 FAC-5
E (2.0%) (01/01/1989) E (2.0%) (01/01/1989)
E-1(2.5%) (01/01/1989) E-1 (2.5%) (01/01/1989)
E-2 (2.5%) (07/01/1989) E-2 (2.5%) (07/01/1989)
0.00% Member Contrib. 0:00% Member Contrib.
11 - Gnl GME B-3 - 80% Max B-3 - 80% Max
Normal Ret Age: 60 Normal Ret Age: 60
-6 : V-6
F55(25) F55(25)
FAC-5 FAC-5
E (2.0%) (01/01/1989) E (2.0%) (01/01/1989)
E-1 (2.5%) (01/01/1990) E-1(2.5%) (01/01/1990)
E-2 (2.5%) (07/01/1993) | B-2 (2.5%) (07/01/1993)
0.00% Member Contrib. 0.00% Member Contrib,
12 - Non Adm B-3 - 80% Max B-3 - 80% Max
Normal Ret Age: 60 Normal Ret Age: 60
V-6 V-6
F50(25) F50(25)
FAC-5 FAC-5
E (2.0%) (01/01/1987) E (2.0%) (01/01/1987)
E-1 (2.5%) (01/01/1991) E-1(2.5%) (01/01/1991)
E-2 (2.5%) (01/01/1991) E-2 (2.5%) (01/01/1991)
0.00% Member Contrib. 0.00% Member Contrib.
-50f77 -




City of Traverse City (2801)

‘V Membership Summary ‘

Table 2

2008 Valuation 2007 Valuation
: Annual Annuaal
Division Number Payroll* Number Payroll*
01 - AdmnStf . '
Active Members 36 $2,477,759 35 $2,309.479
Vested Former Members 4 49,649 4 57,629
Retirees and Beneficiaries | - 49 773,872 48 704,948
10 - LP Admn o
Active Members 9 $637,232 10 $867,578
Vested Former Members 3 29,155 2 24,015
Retirees and Beneficiarics 9 263,741 7 182,195
11 - Gnl GME ’ ‘
Active Members 71 $3,027,569 71 $2,938,952
- Vested Former Members 18 141,031 16 126,907
Retirees and Beneficiaries 48 733,604 44 658,035
12 - Non Adm | | ]
Active Members , 29 $1,881,051 29 $1,963,149
Vested Former Membeérs 1 7,181 1 7,181
Retirees and Beneficiaries 35 822,312 34 675,109
Total Municipality
Active Members 145 $8,023,611 145 $8,079,158
Vested Former Members 26 227,016 23 ' 215,732
Refirees and Beneficiaries | 141 2,593,529 133 2,220,377
Total Participants 312 301
*  Annual payroll for active members; annual deferred benefits payable for vested former members; annual benefits
being paid for refirees and beneficiaries. :
.rpc__id:;.?z 10{ Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company -6of77 -

20



Wy &

ACTUARIAL FUNDING METHOD

4

The Retirement Board has adopted funding methodology for the Retirement System to achieve the

following major objectives:

»  Develop level required contribution rates as a percentage of payroll;

»  Finance benefits earned by present employees on a current basis;

e Accumulate assets to enhance members’ benefit security;

« © Produce investment earnings on accumulated assets to help meet future benefit costs;

> Make it possible to estimate the long-terin actuarial cost of proposed amendments to

System. prowsmns and -
» ' Assist in maintaining the Remrement System’s long—term financial viability.

The basic funding objectiw}e is a level pattern of cost as a perceﬁtége of pay throughout each
member’s working lifetime. The funding method used in this actuarial valuation — the entry age
normal cost method — is itended to i) meet this objective, and ii) result in a relatively level
long-term contribution requirement as a percentage of pay. This actuarial method was first used for

the December 31, 1993 actuarial valuations.

Under the entry age normal cost method, the total actuarially-determined contribution requirement is
equal to the sum of the normal cost plus the paynient required to fund the unfundéd actuarial
accmed liability over a penod of years. Funding or amortizing the unfunded actoarial accrued -

liability includes a paymerit toward the Hability (prmmpal) plus a payment to reflect the time value

of money (interest).

Normal Cost

In general terms, the normal cost is the cos‘; of benefit rightg accruing on the basis of current service.
Technically, the normal cost rate is the level percentage-of-pay contribution required each year, with
réspect to ‘cach member, to accumulate over his or her projécted working lifetime the reserves
needed. to meet the cost of earned benefits. The ﬁormal cost répresents the ultimate cost of the
Retirement System, if the unfunded hablhty is paid up and the actual experience of the System

conforms to the assumptions.

mpe_id: 32104 Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company -69of 77 -



Actuarial Accrued Liability

The total actuarial present value of future benefits is computed izsing the valuation’s actuarial
assumptions. Subtracting the present value of future normal costs results in the actuarial accrued
liability.

The total actuarial accrued liability essentially represents the amount that would have been
accumulated as of December 31, 2008, if confributions sufficient to meet the normal costs of the
Retirement System had been made each year in the past, benefit provisions had always been the
same as current benefit provisions, and actual past experience had always conformed to current
actuarial assumptions. If assets equaled the total accrued liability,-there would be no unfunded

liability and future contribution requirements would consist solely of the calculated normal cost

rates.
Amortization of Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability

" The unfundéd actuarial accrued liability is projected to the begﬁmﬁng of the fiscal year for which

employer contributions are being calculated (see page 43 for a description of the projection). The
projected unfunded accrued liability is then amottized by level pereerit of payréﬂ confributions over

a period of years. Active member payroll is assumed to. in¢rease 4.5% a year for the purpose of
determining the level percent contributions.

The stéﬁdar;d amortization peried to fiund the unfunded liability is 28 years for positive unfunded
liabilities in the 2008 valuation. This period will also be used for the 2009 valuation, and then will
be reduced by one year in each of the next eight annual valuations, réaching 20 years in the;20.17

valuation. Beginning with the 2018 valuation the 20 year period will be reestablished with each
annttal valuation. Section 20m of Act No. 314 of the Public Acts of 1965 as amended (MCL

381 140m) requires that the amortization period not exceed 30 years,

The standard amortization perio,d for negative unfunded liabilities is 10 years, with the 10 year
period reéstablished with each annual actuarial valuation.

For divisions f:hat. are closed to new hires, and the new hirés are not covered by MERS defined
benefit or hybrid provisions (in a linked division), the otherwise applicablé MERS-wide standard

amortization petiod for positiveé unfunded liabilities in effect in the valuation year in which the
division is closed is decreased annually by 2 years until the period reaches 5 years. At that point, the

amortization period will remain at 5 years.
Shorter amortization periods may be elected by a municipality (but not shorter than 5 years for

1pe_id: 32104 _ " Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company -700f77 -

27



negative unfonded labilities).

Table 16 in the results section of this report indicates the current length of the amortization period -

. for each division. Note that when the 10 yeat amortization is used for negative unfunded liabilities,
Table 16 reports the amortization in two parts 1) -a long term credit based on the long term
amottization period (usually the standard amortization period described above) plus i1} an

overfunding credit resulting from using a 10 year amortization.

In calculating the annual required contribution (ARC) for reporting and disclosure purposes under
Statement Nos. 25 and 27 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the following
amortization methods are used: | | :
« A level percentage of payroll amortization is used, based on the amortization periods
described in the prekus paragraph and based on the assumpﬁon that payroll increases
4.5% per year. '
*  For divisions that are less than 100% funded and are closed to new thes (and new hires
are not covered by MERS defined benefit or hybrid provisions in a linked division), a
30-year level'dollar amqﬁizaﬁon isused if it fes_ults ina highef amortization payment.

Present Value of Accrued Benefits

‘ The present value of accrued benefits represents the actuarial value of benefits that have been earned

as of the valuatlon date ‘for all members. of the valuation division. This beneﬁt reﬂects the final

average compensauon and plan benefit service of each member, and plan features of the member's

of the valu 7aliie is the current value or vesied

valuation division as of the valuation date. Included in this

benefits for members who have met plan vesting requirements and the current value of non—vested

benefits for members who have not yet met plan vesting requ1re1nents Regardless of plan vesting
service, all member contributions are vested. Active members are assumed to continue in
employment until retirement, death, disability or termination, but benefit amounts are frozen, for

valuation purposes oﬁly, on the valuation date.
Termination Liability

The termination liability represents the value of the benefits that have been earned as of the
valuation date based on final average compensation and benefit service as of the valuation date. All
active members are assumed to terminaté employment on the valuation date. Vested and non-vested
active members are assumed to retire at the first age when the member would be eligible for

1 unreduced deferred retirement benefits, assuming no continued employment after the valuation date

(non-vested benefits are assumed to commence at age 60).

fpe_id: 32104 - Gabriel Roeder-Smith & Compaity -710f 77 -

23




e

- Projections of Employer Contributions and Funded Percentage

7% The 20-year projections of employer contributions and funded percentages displayed in Chart 17.5

are based on the following assumptions:

«  All demographic assﬁinptions will be met during the projection period, including the
assumption that active membeis" pays increase in accordance with the pay inicrease
assumption (see page 61). If the number of active_membefs remains constail’;, projected
total active member payroll will increase about 4.5% annually, the wage inflation
assumption. For open divisions (an open division is open to newly hired employees),
this projected payroll growth results in increasing employer contributions even when
the employer contribution rate is stable or slowly declining. |

The actuarial value of assets will earn the- assumed .8%= return each year during the
projection period (see Comments on the Investment Markets on page 3).

«  There will be no benefit changes during the projection period.

«  The employer contributions through July 1, 2010 are not affected, and are based on
previous annual actuarial valuations. | . -

«  Fot open divisions (new hires are added to the division), the numbet of active membets
is assumed to réma’in constant. However, if an open division is linked t0 a division that
will have no new hires (whose new hires enter the open division), the total number of
active members in the linked divisions (combined) is assumed to remain constant. For
closed divisions (0 new hires), the number of active members is assumed to gradually

* decline to zero, based on the assumptions for retirement, disability, termination, and

death.

The projected contribution amounts should not be used'for short term budgeting purposes

because the assumptions are designed to be a long term expectation of future events. These
projections illustrate the long term pattern of employer contributions under current funding
policies. A projection of contiibution rates for budgeting purposes would require additional
short-term actuarial analysis, which is beyond the scope of this report. -

Most open division projections (an 6pen division is open to newly hired employees) will show a
véry gradual change, up or down, in the funded percentage toward 100% funding. For divisions that
are currently less than 100%. funded, the reader may be surprised at how long it takes to approach
100% funding. This happens because the standard amortization period for unfunded accrued
liabilities, after declining to 20 years in the 2017 annual actuarial valuations, will be reset each year
theréafter to a new 20 year period. This results in more stable employer contribution rates, but also a
very gradual approach to 100% funding. Additional employer contributions would accelerate the

funding progress.

me_ld: 32104 Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company -720f77 -

24




A closed division (no new hires) that is not linked to an open division (sce the next page for a
discussion of linked divisions) and is less than 100% finded will have a projected employer
contribution that increases edch year for the first 11-12 years after closure. This results in a more
fapid amortization of unfunded accrued liabilities and a more rapid increase in the division’s funded
percentage. This is necessary to ensure that the division has adequate assets to pay benefits.
However, the closed division's funded percentage may start to decline several years after all the
members have retired. Once the average age of the retiree-only division reaches the late 70's or
older, the 5-year amortization period may result in insufficient assets to cover the pension payout.
This issue is being reviewed in the 2004-2008 study of MERS experience, and the 5-year
amortization will likely be revised. For these closed divisions the projected funded percentage in
Chart 17.5 may decrease. (or .go négative) in the Jater years of the projection. ' ‘

A few open divisions will se¢ a decline in the funded percentage. This is usually an open division
“with a very small number of active meinbers (often only one) and a inuch larger number of retirees.
Because the division is open to new hires, the standard amortization period is used. For many years
this may result in a declining funded percentage, which may actually become negative temporarily,
before the funded percentage begins to head up toward 100% funding. Negative assets means the

) division is temporarily borrowing from better funded divisions within the same municipaliy. Such 2

division should be considered a candidate for either merging with a different ‘division, or an
accelerated funding schedule.

A division with no new hires that ig linked tG an open division within the same employee

classification (with new hires — please refer to the next section on Linked Divisions) will typically
show a projected funded percentage that declines and even becomes negaﬁ've. This is an expected
condition, because the.standard open division amortization policy applies to a division with no new
hires that is linked to an open division. The linked division with no new hires is allowed to share the
assets of the linked open division. The division with no new hires alone will run out of assets;
however, the combined tinked divisions will not run out of assets and the combined finded
percentage will head towards. 100%. For a linked division the projections also show a dashed line

that represents the combined projection of all the linked divisions.

A small number of divisions currently have negative assets, and a negative funded percentage.
These are geperally divisions for which many or most of the employees have been transferred to a
different division, with the bulk of the assets also being transferred to the other division. Negative
assets means the division is temporarily borrowing from better funded divisions within the same

municipality. Such a division should be considered a candidate for either merging with a different

pG_id; 32104 A Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company -730f 77 -

29




division, or an accelerated fundmg schedule.

Some divisions are so well funded that ne future employer contributions will be needed; assuming
that there are no major changes in the covered participants, benefit provisions are not changed, and
‘the actuarial assumptions are met. Assets- substantially exceed present liabilities. The funded

percentage will continue to increase during the projection period. Such a division may be a

candidate for a reallocation of assets among other divisions, if appropriate.

For divisions that are affected by empioyef contribution rate caps, the projections of employer
contributions in Chart 17.5 do not reflect the impact of the émployer cap provision, Member
‘contribution rates are assumed to remain. constant at the rates shown in Table 1. The projectéd
. employer contribution rate is allowed t6 move up or down, as fiéed, to adequately fund the benefit
 obligations. In other words, prq;ecﬁon of the future impact of the employer cap provision is beyond
the scope of the Chart 17.5 pro;ecttons Future annual actuarial valuatlon reports will, of course,
reflect (in the results) the application of the then-current employer cap provision,

' Linked Divisions

..} The closed division funding policy described at the bottom of page 70 was adopted by the
Retirement Board (Amortization Policy for Closed Divisions Within Open Municipalities, as revised
by the Retirement Board on March 11, 2009). The purpose is to ensure that a defined benefit (DB)
division that is closed to new hires does not run out of money. Funding the unfunded liabilities over
the MERS standard amortization period will likely deplete a closed division’s assets before the
death of the last participant in the division. Assets cannot be shared between the closed DB division
and a defined contribution (DC) plan covering the new hires, or 2 non-MERS DB plan covering the
new hires, even if the employees are part of the same emiployee classification (bargaining unit).

However, if the new hires are covered by a new tier of benefits in the MERS DB Plan (including the
DB portion of the MERS Hybrid Plan), there can be a sharing of employer assets between the DB
division with no new hires (with the old benefit structure) and the DB/Hybrid division covering the
new hires within the same employee classification, The employer can avoid the required more rapid
amortization of the unfunded liabilities by putting new hires mto a MERS DB or MERS Hybnd

division, instead of a DC plan or non-MERS DB plan

Ifa diyision With no new hires is “linked” to an open MERS DB division, this is indicated in Table

' 1, in the footnote to Table 16, and in the projections in Chart 17.5. Both the linked di.v'isions'wﬂl use
the standard open division funding policy.

mpe_id: 32104 Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company -740f 77 -

26




ASSET VALUATION METHOD

&3 The actuarial value of assets is determined on the ‘basis of a method that calculates expected
investment income at the valuation rate of return and adds a portion of the difference between the
expected investment income and actual investment inGotfic earned on a market value basis, The
difference in investment income between expected return and market retum is recognized over a
10-year period at the rate of 10% per year. This asset valuation method was first adopted for the

December 31, 2005 valuation, and is applied as follows

Actuarial Value equals:
(2) Actuarial value of assets from the previous actuanal valuation, plus

(b) Aggregate employer and member contributions since the last valuation, minus

. (c) Benefit payments and reﬁmds of member contributions since the last valuation, plus
(d) Estimated investment income at the 8% valuation interest rate, plas
(e) Portion of gain (loss) recognized in the current valuation.

For the above purpose, gain (l'osé) is defined as the excess during the period of the investment return
‘ol the market value of assets over the expected investment income. The portion recognized in the
valuation is 10% of the current year's gain (loss) plus 10% of the gain (loss) from each of the 9
~ preceding years. The cumulative difference between the market value and valuation assets as of
4 December 31, 2005 is recogmzed over 9 years.. " .

During 2008, the approx1mate net investment return on average total assets at actuarial value
(determined as the actuarial value of investment income divided by the average actuarial value of
assets during the year) was 4.73%. The cmrespondmg amounts for 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004 were _

8.12%, 8.14%, 6.5 1%, and 6.82%, respec‘avely

For the December 31, 2008 valuation, the actuarial value of assets is equal to 139.15% of market
value (compared-to 98.85%, 98.62%, 102.71%, and 102.45% in 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively). This percentage is applied to each division's reported market value of assets to
estimate the actuarial value of assets for the division. The chart on page 76 provides the details of the
derivation of the actuarial value of assets for the retirement system in the aggregate. :

Tﬁe, reader shguld note that, givén that the actuarial value of assets is currently 39% higher than the
market value, meeting the actuarial assumption in the next few years will require average annual
market retiwrns that substantially exceed the 8% investment return assumption. '

Please see the Comments on the Investment Markets on page 3.

1pc._id: 32104 ¥ Gabriel Roeder Smith & Company -750f 77 -




-LL}09L-

fredwop 23 gynug repaoy puqes

¥0igE piad
T8YI6E'T _697886°0 0798670 (6) / S@ 03084 Wwommsnlpy sy uonEn[EA 7]
(2465°S7) %468°L %I19'C1 WMy Jo a1y EHE 11
%L %T1'8. %18 ) 71EL) + (6)1 = wmmay Jo syey poziuSoocey ‘g1
(B1L0LY 9L T) 9£8°900°0L 1SR LTT°LL S1385Y UONEBNIRA %9 JSNIRI U20s18g 20UsIafI( (0
SLYIELRLT D SL0°0F0°100°9 99V YTETIS'S (8} +(q1) = s1985y uonEnRA (g
SS6'09TTIS Y Y16°9%0°1L0%9 LTETHO'065°S () = enypp 1ovrep (e
_ S1955Y 183X JO puyg 6
S65T69°LLT 1961188y LSLTSRELY (IL) + () + (o) + (eg)
51988y uoneniR A W oFfueyny g
(80Z°9LE‘961) (80T°9LE96T) (802°9LE961) 891°606°9 £SE°626%9 (s507) wreg yusmsaany pezragdooey Jejol (3
‘ Teax ot yruiN (€
Tea X roug g3y (1
Tedx oLy guessq (g
19X Iong g (3
(699°€5L°p1) Tea X toug quLy
720'¢89°1Z (699°¢5L%1) Iea X Youd Gunoy (s
(s8100) TT0'E89°1T (699°€SLpT) - 1eax IOWJ prmy, {p
(9££°58Z°€07) (581°02) T20°€89°12 (699°€sLpT) eI X IoHd puoveg (o
(9LE°687°c07) {s81°07) TT0e89°1e (699°€5Lb1) Jea X J0ud 1511q (q
. (9LESRT C0T) (581°02) 7T0°€89°1Z (9) X 1°0 o3 & ymarm) (e
WITgey TS saAm] Jo uoniudooay) u-poseyd -/
(292758200 (Ly8°102) £2T°0£8°917 (S)-(ag) = (ssoq) mren -9
SH8 15861y ES06LS THY €6¥°6L5°S0Y (¥) x %8 = 212 wonEn[EA 12 Swoou] poyedxy -g
LSO'8Y1R66°s T91°8€T'TES’S S99°EbL'690°S [(og) + (ee)Ixg" + (a1)
= §]OS5Y UOHEn[eA 9FeIoAy ‘p
(656°58.°855°T) L6500 18 LT9ESL €89 (D) - (2) = onpeA 19y 01 sEOLIPPY TEIOL, (P
(9L1°866°6LE) (195°s1£°3¥€) (6T 191°071¢) sjaiked jgeueg (o
{L16'100°¢55"T) SOTLLE T 9TL'60¥TZ9 (0€) - (2£) - (P£) = swoouy JmounsaALy J0N (q
PEIVITYLE 7S6°Tr693€ LSTS0S 1LE sEOHUqINTOQ) 19N (2
_ one A 1IN 0 SUOHIPPY RN '
SSE09TTISY F16°990°1L0'9 LIETPO7065°S S1O5SY U[BA 19IBIA TE8 X YO pUF ‘7
8L0°0V0°T00°G 99 PT6TIS'S 60L°120°6£0°S $}9sSY uomen[EA (q
PI6OP01LO9 LTETHO065'S § 069°887°906°7 § anpeA 1aIEIA (v
Co 81958y reo X jo SumurSaqg 1
0107 6007 200C L00% 9002 11 € 30qe0a(] 2jB( UOLEN[RA

SJ9SSY 30 ONIEA TEHENDY JO WONBALI ([
BRI JO Wa)SAQ JuRTIOIeY 1Sokordury redroranyy




o))
~Ll2o 1L Auedwro) 23 Wnug wpsoy [sugen rOLZE PO
$90LT0'T SOPYTO1 191$60°T YSPRST T 696S0T°T . (26) / (96) = 10708 JUsTLSTIPY JosSV UOHENTEA 7]

%bT9 %y ¥l %ET¥T 11{%s56'8) - (%8t LYY JO 83y 1T 1T

%IS9 %28'9 %00°8 %EY'E %TL'L . 1)/ 1BL) +(5)] = wmey yo srey pezruSoosy o]
(610°€8L°ZET) (zr6'900°c11) (0¥ vov°L85) (T1E°001°6¥3) {055°955‘08¢) S125SV UOHBUZA %9 1eXIBjA] U92i]ag 90UaIagIq (o
60L 1LO°6E0°S 62T 80T TELY 070°26v" 657 SHOPOYrETY 1V LLEPEDY R (8) + (1) = syessy uonenyeA (q
069'887°006°F L8CT0T'619Y 081°L66°1L0"Y ECEVOE’SRTE | 698°078°Ly9°C (2) = onyep 1oy (2

- ) . Bomw.< .._mv.wr,yo PUF 6
084°€98°90¢ 60T91LTLT SLE'LRO'SZE 92Z°L70'00} 080'%S6°74T BL) +(5) + (35) + (2g)

. . muomm«o« mOﬁmﬂHw A ar owﬁmﬂO ‘Q
{ezi'1es0L) (£91°0L1°2S) 0 (L82°679°¢81) (819°15901) (sso7) urep yuemysonuy pezmBoosy oy, (3
(01L°8L8°98) (01L°€L8°96) 0 VN VIN PITIQUIOY) S1BO X £00Z-6661 (§

.  80¥'8TT0F LSO‘EVL EY B3 X 10ud Wmoy (a

PP 186°C9 01¥'82T 0V  Tea X 10Ud puyy, (p

(99T°0L96L) PP 186°9 Tea X I0Lg puosasg (o

LYS €0y by (097b¢6°81) (99Z°0L9°61) B3 x 101 3811 (q

{095°190°81) LYS €0b {019°Y£T°621) (097'pe6°3L) ©) x7'p tree X Jusrmy (&
. . Ed,wo;m udmdbmm\wﬂ Jo coﬂmﬁmoooﬁ dHn@mmm&nH L
(008 £0E°06) SELLI0TTT TLY'S09 19% (670°€L1°9¥9) (00€1L9°P6E) ($) - (4g) = (ssoP uren -9
8IZ1ES°3LE 910°¥§°s5E LY PESDEE 065°9¥2°12¢ PI0°T0¥°10g (¥) X %8 = oy wonen[E A 1e owooty payoedyy 'S

TTT 0PI TEL Y 869 TIE brv'y 680189 IET° Y - 18€°Z85°ST10%Y 18T°6Z6°LoL%E [(Gg) + ()Ixs" + (q1)
= 81088y mopenje ofereay 4

£0¥°L80°L8T LOL'Y0T'L¥S LY8°C69°98L (5£5'915°29¢) (T09°590°171) (1) - (7) = enpe A 10318y 0) swOBIPPY [e101 (p

(6£5°57L°8L7) (Z1651¥°5ST) (S05°268°377) - (s£9°L10°502) (16L°668°107) - smewideq 1yeusy (o

8IH'€2788T 1SL°T98°LLS " 6S6°6E1°T6L {65t'9z6°y7€) (987°697°%6) (06} - (2£) - (Pg) = owmoony JasngsaAn] JoN (q

YTS685°LLT 897°LS0°€TT £6E°0SY°ETT 8SSLTYLOT SLY'EBIYST SUOBNQIIUOY) JaN (&
o . : an[BA IOAIB] 0 SUOWIPPY JaN 'E
0693827906 L8TTOT619Y 081°L66°1L0Y EEEPOESRTE . 698028 Lyo°c S1as5Y n[BA JONIBIN Tes X JO pUg ‘7

6TT°80TCLELY 0Z0'Z6¥ 65F Y SYOPOFPET Y 61V LLEPED'Y 6EC'ETF 16LE Sjassy uonenEA (q

L8TT0Z619% § 081°L66°1L0Y § EEEY0ESRTE $ 698°0T8°LYS'E § 1L7'983°88L°¢ § YA I0RIN (e
: . . 53955y Tea g yo Burmumideg

5007 00T £00T 7007 1002 ‘[ £ 12quaoa( 838(] UOnEN[EA

("3103) 53958V Jo anpB A [BLIENIDV JO uonBALIYQ

UBSIYOIIA IO Eoﬁ%m.«ﬁe&uuﬁu& 1S3 4ordug redprungy

o




(e
&%ﬁ TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Edward E. Rice, Executive Director ? (? a
Date: January 7, 2011

Subject: Presentation of the 2009-2010 Financial Audit

The TCL&P Financial Audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 will be presented by
our auditors Rehmann Robson under New Business. If after the Board's questions
have been answered you are satisfied with the report the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD ACCEPTS THE FINANCIAL AUDIT FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010.

30




ABisua/bioruoisinpueibay) /AB12us/Bi0 uoisIApuRIBIYYrMMM//:d1IYy
B40mIaN ABIau3 UOISIA puelD) npadwu@As|iegs
331 HISIA UORRWLIOMU] 2I0W 404 0002-566-L€Z | A2reg p3
10ju] [e43UlD) 104

/ABiaua/BioruoisiapuriBayrmmm//:dizy

wodnasiaquiswguidiew

£€TS-TE6-LET | Jejayd 2oy
:03u] J03iqIyx3/iosuods 104

sdiysiejoyds apﬂﬁ:ﬁ 10ddns

SUPaID) XB| /s91egRY/BudueUlY
‘buinybiy EmEa_:_um_ 1ua1dYy3 ABisu3g ‘supny Abiaug
‘s90un0say ABisug sjgemausy swinio4 jeuonednpy

s3onpoud Jusanyo
ABiaua Buisn uoneaIdsuod A612us Jo s3yauaq ay) 335

suoneaAouul 3saje| ay3 39s ‘Ajpides buibueyd si Abojouydaj

s319dxa A13snpul
AB13u3 09 1910 Y3im odxa ABidus jeuoibai 3sabie

NOISSINGY 3344

98961 IW ‘A}1D 3siane}
9A(Q YAed 049y STST
sal10jeioqe] yied 013y DN

YIMOd S LHOIT o

ALID 3IS¥3IAVYUL

F8233M5 smol Wi siruIATY

dITTNWIANIM

4
-g palosuods

E.ua_-uu._\:eménm_-_u_ﬁ

a3aq10D
USRI
UIDISIMYIION




